
South Haven City Hall is Barrier-free and the City of South Haven will provide the necessary reasonable auxiliary aids 
and services for persons with disabilities, such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed 
materials being considered at the meeting to individuals with disabilities at the meeting upon seven (7) days notice to 
the South Haven City Clerk. Individuals with disabilities requiring services should contact the City Clerk by writing or 
calling South Haven City Hall at (269) 637-0700. 

 
 

Planning Commission 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda  
Thursday, April 2, 2015 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
 

AMENDED 
City of South Haven 

                                                                      

 
              
1. Call to Order  
 
2. Roll Call 

 
3. Approval of Agenda  
 
4. Approval of Minutes – March 5, 2015 

 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
6. New Business – Public Hearing 

 
Public hearing for Phase 2 of Central Lofts Condominiums, 500 Erie Street. The applicant 
Erie Street Properties, LLC of Kalamazoo, MI seek to make improvements which include the 
development of ten (10) residential units in the detached building on Superior Street 
(commonly referred to as the old AV building). Parking for the units is proposed to be in the 
lower level of the building.   
 
Because the zoning ordinance requires that condominium reviews be completed in the same 
manner as planned unit developments, a public hearing is required. 

 
7. Commissioner Comments 
 
8. Adjourn 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
Linda Anderson, Zoning Administrator 



 
 

Planning Commission 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes  
Thursday, March 5, 2015 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
 

City of South Haven 
                                                                      

 

              
1. Call to Order by Paull at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 
 

Present: Frost, Heinig, Peterson, Smith, Stimson, Webb, Paull 
Absent:  Miles, Wall 
 
Motion by Heinig, second by Smith to excuse Miles and Wall.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
3. Approval of Agenda  
 

Motion by Smith, second by Heinig to approve the March 5, 2015 regular meeting agenda 
as presented. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
4. Approval of Minutes – January 15, 2015 
 

Motion by Heinig, second by Frost to approve the January 15, 2015 regular meeting minutes 
as written. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 

There were none. 
 
6. New Business – Public Hearing 

 
Joe Wiltgen requests a special use permit to construct a planned shopping center 
on his property at 330 Blue Star Highway. The special use permit is necessary 
because the applicant intends to construct a single building with more than two (2) 
individual commercial units. 

 



March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 
 

2 
 

Paull explained that this application is incomplete, missing information needed to make a 
decision and premature in submittal. He stated that there was enough information, 
according to rules and procedures, to conduct the public hearing.  
 
Motion by Heinig, second by Smith, to open the public hearing. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
Linda Anderson, Planning and Zoning Administrator: Did find a number of things missing; 
the applicant will need variances, one (1) for each side; the city engineer found a number of 
things which need to be added or changed. The city engineer, the applicant and Anderson 
will be meeting on Monday to be sure the applicant understands what needs to be done 
after which the applicant will return to the commission. 
 
Joe Wiltgen, 519 Virginia Avenue, South Haven: Indicated that he wants to construct a strip 
mall one hundred thirty feet (130’) wide and fifty feet (50’) deep in the location of the existing 
car wash.  
 
Paull indicated that the applicant is aware that a building of this size is too big for the site to 
which Wiltgen responded the site used to be big enough, but not with the overlay zone, that 
is why he is going for a variance. 
 
Owen Ridley, 309 Jones Ave, South Haven: Lives in the same block as the car wash; has 
been a resident for nineteen (19) years; looking forward to having that strip mall in the area. 
Ridley remarked that there have been complaints with loud music, people backing their cars 
out, vacuums running, etc. with the car wash. Ridley noted that he chose to move there, 
knowing the car wash is there, but a change of scenery is looked forward to. Spoke with 
some of the neighbors and his wife; have not spoken to anyone who had negative opinions. 
Thanked the commission for their consideration. 
 
Discussion between Chairman Paull and Anderson regarding closing or continuing the 
public hearing. Paull asked the pleasure of the commission. 
 
Motion by Webb, second by Heinig to continue the public hearing. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
Heinig likes the concept, thinks it is a great location but there are so many unanswered 
questions. “Let’s get some of the issues settled; having done that we can take a second look 
at this.”  
 
Smith agrees that there are too many unanswered variables; good concept.  
“Button it up.” 

 
7. Site Plan Review 
 

Joe Wiltgen is seeking site plan approval for a new commercial building proposed 
for 330 Blue Star Highway.  
 



March 5, 2015 
Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 
 

3 
 

Anderson informed the commission that this is the site plan review for the same project.  
The issues she and the engineer have are too many to make even a conditional approval. 
Anderson advised that the commission table this review until the applicant brings things 
back and they can address both issues at one time. 
 
The item is tabled. 
 

8. Commissioner Comments 
 

Peterson: No comment.  
 
Stimson:  Winter could be over.  
 
Frost: Congratulations to the varsity girls’ basketball team who won ten (10) games this 
year. 
 
Smith: As we look at this project, could we take a careful eye with the lighting, because 
we approved a car lot and I am still upset with the amount of light that project spews into 
the neighborhood. 
 
Anderson explained that while applicants often provide specifications and other 
information from the manufacturer, we need to ask for the photometric which shows what 
the lighting will be; indicates how far the light spread beyond the fixture. According to the 
ordinance, not only can the light not go up but it also is not to go off the property. 
 
Heinig: Requested an update for the commission on activities of Monroe Park area sub-
committee.  
 
Anderson said the subcommittee has been working on the R1-C zoning district which is 
Monroe Park. The lots are very small; houses are very close together; there are issues 
with run-off and concerns with the safety of getting emergency vehicles in there. The sub-
committee will be looking at the solutions we could consider regarding impervious 
surfaces and the amount of setback required currently. The sub-committee has met twice 
and will be meeting soon with Fire Marshall and Building Inspector. “We will also be 
walking the area and making sure everything we are doing will be helpful to that area.” 
Anderson indicated that recommendations will have to go to Planning Commission; a 
public hearing will be held in the summer when most people are here, and then to City 
Council.  
 
Webb:  No comment. 

 
9. Adjourn 
 

Motion by Heinig, second by Stimson to adjourn at 7:15 p.m. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
Marsha Ransom, Recording Secretary 



 
 

Planning Commission 
Staff Report 
April 2, 2015 

 
 
 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6 

Central Lofts Phase II 
Site Plan Review 

 
City of South Haven 

 
 
 

Background Information:   On March 22, 2007, the Planning Commission granted a special 
use permit to Bosgraaf Commercial (aka Central Lofts LLC) to begin Phase 1 renovations to the 
former Central Middle School at 500 Erie Street. The renovations included 22 condominium 
units and an indoor pool to be located within the main building. Site improvements included 44 
onsite parking spaces and an outdoor patio area. Although no exact records were found, it 
appears this developer gave up interest in the project sometime in late 2008. 
 
In February of 2013, the property was purchased by Erie Street Properties, LLC. On June 20, 
2013, the Planning Commission held a special meeting to consider changes to the approved 
plans on record. The applicant asked and received permission to pave and restripe the parking 
lot, install a small retaining wall and construct a patio area on the south side of the building with 
two access doors.  
 
The applicant has now submitted plans to convert the former AV building into 10 residential 
units on the upper level with parking underneath. On July 26, 2013, the City Assessor and 
Zoning Administrator received notice from Van Buren County Register of Deeds that they had 
approved a land division on the Central Lofts property. The Building Department then contacted 
the City Attorney for direction on proceeding since the land division did not first go through the 
Assessor and Building Department.  
 
The county assessor informed the city that land divisions within condominium projects do not 
require municipal approval, only county approval. Staff was still concerned about the parking 
and open space issues resulting from the division.  It was subsequently found that the applicant 
had recorded a parking easement with Van Buren County Register of Deeds. That easement 
provides that the parking areas on both properties are to be shared. Staff has a copy of that 
document. 
 
The amendment to the master deed which allows for the Phase II development also includes 
easement language related to open space. In effect it states that all open space is to be 
available to both properties. This document has also been recorded with the Register of Deeds 
and is on file in the Building Department. 
 
With both the parking and open space issues addressed, the plan reviews for the Phase II 
project could proceed. 



 
 

Planning Commission 
Staff Report 
April 2, 2015 

 
 
 

 
One issue with the site plan is the size of the proposed parking spaces. The plan shows spaces 
nine (9) feet wide and eighteen (18) feet deep. Twenty (20) feet of depth is required in Section 
1801.  In addition, the aisle width is required to be 24 feet and the plan shows an aisle width of 
nineteen (19) feet. 
 
In 2008 the applicant applied for and received a variance for the parking space depth and aisle 
width. The variance specifically included the parking lot and the building lot because the 
configuration of the building made parking very tight. Staff believes that since variances go with 
the land, this variance for building parking applies even though the property has been split. 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Staff tentatively recommends approval of the site plan for Phase II, Central Lofts, with the 
following conditions: 
 

1. All engineering issues will be resolved before any permits are issued.  
2. Agreement among Planning Commissioners that the variance granted in 2008 applies to 

the entire property including the large parking lot and the building parking as proposed in 
this application. 

3. Details of any wall light or signage proposed shall be approved by the zoning 
administrator prior to final approval. 

 
 
Support Material:  
 
Application 
Site plan review set (plans) 
Second amendment to Central Lofts 
Shared parking easement 
Zoning staff review 
City Engineer comments will be sent in a separate email.  
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 
























































































	Agenda
	4.03-05-2015 Draft Minutes
	6. Central Lofts Condos
	Staff Report
	Application
	Site Plan Review Set
	Second Amendment to Central Lofts
	Shared Parking Easement
	Zoning Review

	7. 237 Broadway Site Plan Review
	Staff Report
	Application
	Existing site plan
	Features removal plan
	Proposed site plan
	Zoning staff review
	City engineer review



